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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Classic Industries and Exports Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Classic Industries and Exports Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), The Statement of Changes in Equity and Stalement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit (including Other
Comprehensive Income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our resporsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the
provicions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Financizl Statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income}), changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company'’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objeclives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
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as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing cur opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
A; a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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c)

f)

h)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

As required by section 197 (16) of the Act; in our opinion and according to information and
explanation provided to us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act and remuneration paid to directors is not in excess
of the limit laid down under this section.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Financial Statements — Refer Note 2.34 to the Financial Statements.

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at
March 31, 2023

(i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts to the financial statements, if any, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) the management has represented to us, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts to the Financial Statements, if any, no funds
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have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the information and explanation given to us and audit procedures performed as
considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations made by the management and as
mentioned under sub-clause (vi)(a) and (vi)(b) above contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year.

(vi) The requirement to the use of accounting software for maintaining Company’s books of

account which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility is deferred to financial
years commencing on or after April 1, 2023, therefore reporting under Rule 11(g) of
Companies {Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for financial year ended on March
31, 2023.

For P G BHAGWAT LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 10111 8W/W100682

A LAY ™
Mtk

Purva Kulkarni

Partner

Membership Number: 138855

UDIN: 23138855BGTQUJ2510

Pune

May 04, 2023
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading, “Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
report on even date:

i. (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets;

(b) The Property, Plant & Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the Management
during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note 2.01 Property,
Plant & Equipment to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations provided to us there are no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. Hence
reporting under clause 3(i) (e) of the order is not applicable.

i. (@) Except for inventory lying with third parties, the other inventory has been physically verified by the
Management during the year. In our opinion and based on the policy adopted by the management, the
coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical
verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class
of inventory and have been appropriately dealt with in the books of accounts.

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees during the year, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The management of the company has provided us
with the annual returns or statements, which they have represented to us have been filed by the company
with their banks or financial institutions. In our opinion, these annual returns or statements are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company.
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iii.(a) The company has not made or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

(b) Interms of the information and explanations given to us and the books of account and records examined
by us, loans provided, and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature
of loans provided during the year are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of the loans granted in earlier years, the repayment terms are on demand, hence reporting
with respect to regularity of repayment of principal and/or interest amounts is not applicable.

(d) In respect of the loans granted in earlier years, the repayment terms are on demand, hence there is no
amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) Inrespect of the loans and advances in the nature of loans granted which has fallen due during the year,
no renewal or extension were granted or no fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans
given to the same parties.

(f) During the year, The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, except following —

Particulars All Parties Promoters under | Related Parties under
section 2(69) of the Act | section 2(76) of the Act

Aggregate amount of
loans/advances in
nature of loans

- Repayable on - - 102.00 Millions
demand (A)
- Agreement does not - - -
specify any terms or
period of repayment (B)
Total (A + B) - - 102.00 Millions
Percentage of loans/ - - 100.00%
advances in nature of
loans to the total loans

iv. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans
and investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it.

v, The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the
public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to
the extent notified.

vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain
cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly

CLASSIC INDUSTRIES AND EXPORTS LIMITED
CARO REPORT MARCH 31, 2023




P G BHAGWAT LLP

Chartered Accountants
LLPIN: AAT - 9949

reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with
a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii. (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues,
including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues,
as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no statutory dues of Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cess which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of other slatutory dues referred to in
sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2023 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as

follows:
Name of the Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where
statute dues (Rs. the amount the dispute is
Millions) relates pending
Income Tax | Income Tax 0.21 AY 2013-14 CIT(A), Delhi
Act, 1961 and Interest
Income Tax | Income Tax 10.66 AY 2018-19 CIT(A), Delhi
Act, 1961 and Interest
Income  Tax| TDS 0.17 From AY 2009-10 Assistant
Act, 1961 Defaults to AY 2023-24 Commissioner
of TDS CPC
Central Excise | Excise Duty 508.22 From 01.01.2007 CESTAT
Act, 1944 t0 31.12.2014
viiil.  Interms of the information and explanations given to us and the books of account and records examined

by us, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Hence reporting under clause 3(viii) of the order is not applicable.

ix. (@) As the Company does not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender as at the balance sheet
date, the provisions of Clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the
Company has not availed any term loan.
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(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on
an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies.

X. (@) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

Xi. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or on the
Company noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the
Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, report in the form ADT-4 as specified under sub-section (12) of section 143 of
the Companies Act has not been filed. Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the order is not
applicable.

Xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required under Ind AS 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
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xiv. (@) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period under
audit.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (@) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the
year. Therefore reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the order is not applicable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, the Company
is not Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India, hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the order is not applicable.

(d) Based on information and explanation given to us and as represented by the management, the Group
does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC) as part of the Group.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during current financial year and had not incurred cash losses
during immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation by statutory auditors during the year hence reporting under clause 3(xviii)
of the order is not applicable.

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given.to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing
projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act in compliance with
second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a)
of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(b) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) in respect of ongoing
projects requiring a transfer to a Special Account in compliance with sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For P G BHAGWAT LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 10 1118W/AW100682

Purva Kulkarni
Partner ¢
Membership Number: 138855 \ox )
UDIN: 23138855BGTQUJ2510 LD AC
Pune

May 04, 2023
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading, “Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements”
of our report on even date:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of Classic
Industries and Exports Limited (‘the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of
the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to the Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal controls over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
controls stated in the Guidance Note cn Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For P G BHAGWAT LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101118W/W100682

Fik\,{,\];m ™

Purva Kulkarni

Partner

Membership Number: 138855
UDIN: 23138855BGTQUJ2510

Pune
May 04, 2023
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Classic Industries and Exports Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023
(Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars I:I?:e As at 31.03.2023| As at 31.03.2022
L ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
a. Property, Plant and Equipment 2.01 1,129.20 1,181.63
b. Capital work-in-progress 1.67 13.73
c. Intangible assets 2.01 2.91 435
d. Financial assets
i. Investments 2.02 6,910.34 4,150.92
ii. Other financial assets 2.03 22.71 23.03
e. Non-current tax assets (net) 2.04 39.28 38.70
f. Other non-current assets 2.05 11,08 7.52
Total Non-current assets 8,117.20 5,419.88
2. Current assets
a. Inventories 2.06 1,058.25 1,116.36
b. Financial assets
i. Trade Receivables 2.07 815.16 955.83
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 2.08A 167.44 276.53
iii. Bank Balances other than (ji) above 2.08B 202.34 122,08
iv. Loans 2.08 102.00 107.50
v. Other financial assets 2.10 117.97 402.09
c. Other current assets 211 40.79 93.76
Total current assets 2,503.95 3,074.15
Total Assets 10,621.15 8,494.03
. E ND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
a. Equity share capital 212 104.80 104.80
b. Other equity 213 8,496.06 6,322.27
Total Equity 8,600.86 6,427.07
LIABILITIES
2. Non-current liabilities
a. Financial liabilities
i. Lease Liabilities 214 0.34 0.32
b. Provisions 2.15 13.08 10.54
¢. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 2.16 1,012.05 607,62
Total non-current liabilities 1,025.47 618.48
3. Current liabilities
a. Financial liabilities
i. Lease Liabilities 217 0.02 0.02
ii. Trade Payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 218 25.16 31.38
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and | 2.18 754.62 1,077.90
small enterprises
iii, Other financial liabilities 219 96.18 92.33
b. Other Current Liabilities 2.20 27.14 168.50
¢. Provisions 2.21 73.13 65.92
d. Cuirent tax liabilities (net) 222 18.57 12.44
Total current liabilities 994.82 1,448.49
Total liabilities 2.020.29 2.066.87
Total equity and liabilities 10,621.15 8,494.03
Significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates and judgements Note 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our separate report of even date attached For and on behalf of the B}dard of Directors
S
5 z ANy ~
For P G BHAGWAT LLP Onkar Kanwar Naveen Kapur

Whaole Time Director
L DIN: 00024538

Director

Firm Registration Number: 101118V / W100682
Chartered Accountants, 5 G L A

L_,LUCQ YW .
Purva Kulkarni t]“)}
Partner \ 1£] ! Neha Mishra
Membership No.: 138855 . " 2 & Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Pune Nt R Place: Gurgaon

Date : May 04, 2023 S Date: May 04, 2023



Classic Industries and Exports Limited

Statement of Profit And Loss for year ended 31st March, 2023
(Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

. For the year For the year
Particulars NoteNo| o ded 31.03.2023 | ended 31.03.2022
INCOME
I. Revenue from operations 2.23 6,884.33 6,536.04
Il.  Other Income 2.24 166.57 117.22
lll.  Total Income 7,050.90 6,653.26
IV. EXPENSES
a. Cost of material consumed 2.25 4,885.67 4,429.53
b. Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 2.26 (27.18) (17.57)
¢. Employee benefits expenses 227 872.41 774.96
d. Finance cost 2.28 4.53 4.99
e. Depreciation and amortisation expenses 2.01 145.58 149.60
f. Other expenses 2.29 808.96 795.99
IV.  Total Expenses 6,689.97 6,137.50
V.  Profit before Tax (Ill-1V) 360.93 515.76
VI. Tax expense:
a. Current tax 89.76 144.71
b. Tax Prior Years - 1.18
c. Deferred tax (9.73) (9.02)
80.03 136.87
VII.  Profit for the period (V - VI) 280.90 378.89
Other Comprehensive Income
A. ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
(i) Re-measurements on defined benefit plans (6.93) (5.37)
(i) Income tax effect 1.74 1.35
(5.19) (4.02)
B. Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
(i) Fair valuation gain/(loss) adjustments on equity instruments designated 2,313.99 (588.77)
as FVTOCI
(i) Income tax effect (415.91) 40.66
(iii) Loss on Sale of Equity Investment
1,898.08 (548.11)
VIIl. Other comprehensive income for the year (VIIA+VIIB) 1,892.88 (552.13)
IX. Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII+ VIIl) (Comprising Profit 2,173.78 (173.24)
and Other Comprehensive Income for the period)
X.  Earnings per equity share: 2.30 26.80 36.15
Nominal value of share Rs.10/- (Rs.10/-)
- Basic/ Diluted
Significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates and judgements Note 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our separate report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of | Dlrectors
O‘Ak.u ku% /\_ P f/ A
For P G BHAGWAT LLP Onkar Kanwar Naveen Kap
Firm Registration Number: 101118W / W100682 Whole Time Director

artered Accountants

e
Purva Kulkarni
Partner
Membership No.: 138855
Place: Pune

{LUsa N

Date : May 04, 2023

Di[\eclor

Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 00024538

Seia V\K(

Company Secretary

Place: Gurgaon
Date : May 04, 2023




Classic Industries and Exports Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

(A) Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid:

No. of shares Amount
As at 31st March, 2022 1,04,80,000 104.80
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to Prior period errors - -
Restated Balance as at 01st April 2022 - -
Issued during the year 2022-23 = -
As at 31st March, 2023 1,04,80,000 104.80
(B) Other equity
Reserve & Surplus Items of OCI
Particulars . Retained FVTOCI Reserve Tota!
Capital Reserve . on equity
Earnings .
instruments
Balance as at 1st April 2021 13.08 4,581.10 1,901.31 6,495.50
Profit for the year - 378.90 - 378.90
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans - (4.02) - (4.02)
Other comprehensive income - - (548.11) (548.11)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 374.88 (548.11) (173.23)
Balance as at 31st March 2022 13.08 4,955.98 1,353.20 6,322.27
Reserve & Surplus Items of OCI
Particulars . Retained FVTOCI Reserve Total
Capital Reserve N d
Earnings on equity
Balance as at 1st April 2022 13.08 4,955.98 1,353.20 6,322.27
Profit for the year - 280.90 - 280.90
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans - (5.18) - (5.18)
Other comprehensive income - - 1,898.08 1,898.08
Total comprehensive income for the year - 275.72 1,898.08 2,173.79
Balance as at 31st March 2023 13.08 5,231.70 3,251.28 8,496.06
Significant accounting policies & other notes Note 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our separate report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Ch r!?red Accountapts T
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Purva Kulkarni

Partner

Membership No.: 138855 SAED Ao
Place: Pune —
Date : May 04, 2023

Onkar Kanwar

Rupak Saxena
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurgaon
Date : May 04, 2023

Whole Time Director
DIN: 00024538

Neha Mishra
Company Secretary



Classic Industries and Exports Limited

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

B Year ended Year ended
i i 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 360.93 515.76
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 135.45 149.60
Impairment Allowance 10.13 -
Finance cost 453 4.99
Interest income (19.28) (26.86)
Liabilities written back (0.76) (0.95)
(Gain)/Loss on Fair Valuation of Preference Shares (16.25) (4.29)
(Gain)/ loss on sale of fixed assets (0.28) 3.42
Share of Profit from Sunrays Global Consultants LLP (63.56) (13.83)
Book Debts Written Off - 2.39
Balances write off 0.70 -
Dividend Received from Trade & Non-Trade Investments (68.19) (63.64)
Net Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss 3.88 (0.82)
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 357.30 565.77
Changes in working capital
Increase / (decrease) in Trade Payables (332.61) 189.29
Increase / (decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 0.21 23.79
Increase / (decrease) in Current Lease Liabilities - 0.00
Increase / (decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (141.36) 54.97
Increase / (decrease) in Non Current Provisions 2.54 (3.03)
Increase / (decrease) in Non Current Lease Liabilities 0.02 0.02
Increase / (decrease) in Current Provisions 0.28 20.85
Decrease / (increase) in Inventories 58.10 (569.07)
Decrease / (increase) in Trade Receivables 139.98 (28.48)
Decrease / (increase) in Non Current Other Assets (4.37) 0.35
Decrease / (increase) in Non Current Other Financial Assets 0.32 15.49
Decrease / (increase) in Current Other Financial Assets 156.51 (1.30)
Decrease / (increase) in Other Current Assets 52.98 43.06
Cash generated /(used) in operations 289.90 821.71
Income tax paid (84.20) (155.87)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) 205.70 665.84
Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including Capital work in progress and intangibles (75.48) (101.86)
assets, intangible under development, Right-of-use asset and capital advance (net)
Sale/ (Purchase) of non current investment (429.17) (450.00)
Proceeds from sale/ disposal of Investments - 59.31
Proceeds from sale/ disposal of fixed assets 0.54 0.94
Net proceeds/ (Additions) from/ (to) Fixed Deposits (80.28) (56.30)
Dividend Received from Trade & Non-Trade Investments 58.19 63.64
Interest received 20.48 10.96
Received from Sunrays LLP 189.97 (0.00)
Net cash flow from investing activities (B) (315.75) (473.31)




. Year ended Year ended
RATACHIRKS 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Cash flow from Financing activities
Repayment of borrowings (Net) = -
Loans (advanced to) / repaid by related parties 5.50 (107.50)
Interest paid (4.54) (4.99)
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 0.96 (112.49)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (109.09) 80.05
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 276.53 196.48
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 167.44 276.53
Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Refer Note 2.08A)
Balances with banks
On current accounts 167.33 228.50
Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 3 months - 47.73
Cash on hand 0.11 0.30
Total cash and bank balances at end of the year 167.44 276.53
Significant accounting policies & other notes Note 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our separate report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Ot lince leseci vt =
For P G BHAGWAT LLP Onkar Kanwar Naveen Kapur
Firm Registration Number: 101118W / W100682 Director Whole Time Director
Cc aﬂrtersd Accountants DIN; 00058821 e DIN: 00024538

Purva Kulkarni \2\ /2] Rupak Saxena Neha Mishra

Partner \ ; - A& / Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: 138855 {3 cO
Place: Pune — Place: Gurgaon

Date : May 04, 2023 Date : May 04, 2023



Classlic Industrles and Exports Limited

Notes forming part of financlals statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated.)

1.1

(a)

(b)

(c)

1.2

General Corporate Information

Classic Industries and Exports Limited (the "Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India. The Company is primarily engaged in
manufacturing and sale of Tubes, Tyre Building Machines and other ancillary machines which are complex in nature. The company's
operations are in India and comprise of three manufacturing planis - located in Pune, Cochin and Chennai respectively.

Summary of Significant Accounting policies
Basis of Accounting & preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for cartain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, and the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act) (to the extent nolified), as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with
Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companizs (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016.

The financial statements were approved by board of directors and authorised for issue on 4th May 2023.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prapared on accrual basis under a historical cost convention, except for certain financial instruments Lhat
are measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:-

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy 1.18 on financial instruments)

i} Defined benefit and other long-term employee benefits

Al assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-curranl as per the Company’s operating cycle and olher criteria sel out in the
Schedule Iif to the Companies Acl, 2013. Based on the nature of services and the time between the rendering of service and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operaling cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assels and liabilities. )

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make estimate and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reporied amount of revenue and expenses for the year and
disclosures of conlingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial
statements are based upon the management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial statements.
Actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates, if any, are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future years if the revision effects such
periods. Also key sources of eslimation uncertainty is mentioned below:

1) Useful lives of property, plant and equlpment and Intangible assets:
As described in the significant accounting policy, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets at the end of each reporting period.

ii) The fair value measurements and valuation processes:

Some of the Company's assels and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or liability, the Company uses market-abservable data to the extent it is available. Where level 1 input are not available, the Company
engages third party valuers, where required, to perform the valuation. Information about the valuation techniques and inputs, used in
determining the fair value of various assets, liabilities and share based payments are disclosed in notes to financial statements.

iii) Actuarial valuation:

The determination of Company's liability towards defined benefit obligation to employees is made through independent actuarlal valuation
including determination of amounts to be recognized in the statement of profit or loss and in other comprehensive income. Such valuation
depend upon assumptions determined after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and
demand factors in the employment market. Information about such valuation is provided in notes to financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Tangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Direct cosis are
capitalized until the assets are ready for use and include inward freight, and expenses incidental to acquisition and installation. Subsequent
expenditures related to an item of tangible asset are added to ils book value only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset
beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of tangible assets measured as the difference between
amount realised and net carrying value which are carried at cost are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreclation methods, estimated useful lives

Deprecialion on tangible assets is provided when the assets are ready for use on the straight line method, on a pro rata basis, over the
estimated useful lives of assets, in order to reflect the period over which the depreciable asset is expected to be used by the Company. The
management eslimates Lhe useful lives for lhe other fixed assets as follows.




Classlc Industrles and Exports Limited

Notes forming part of financials slatements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amaunt in INR Milllans, unless otherwise stated.)

13

1.4

1.5

Pro lant and equipment Useful Life
Banbury Body/Chamber, Fire Hydrant 5 years
Dumping Mill and Sheeting Mill 7 years
Other components of Banbury unit 7 years
‘Batch off unit 10 years
Vehicle 4 years
'Other Plant & Machinery 2to 10 years
4 Agis Engraving machine S NO:2012-H245-06 -ER 005 30 years

Air Conditioner 2 Ton 10 years

Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the parind over which
managementl expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets is different from (he useful lives as preseribed under Part C
of schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Lease Premium on land is depreciated (amortized) over the period of lease.

Depreciation on sale/deduction from property plant and equipment is provided up to the date preceding the date of sale, deduction as the
case may be. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in Statement
of Profit and Loss under 'Other Income/Other Expenses'.

Deprecialion melhods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, as
change in accounting estimates.

Intangible Assets and Amortization

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated
amortization and impairment, if any.

The Company amoriized intangible assels over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives of
intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible assets Useful Life
Intangible Assets 1 -5 years

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software product development costs are expensed as incurred unless technical and commercial
feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic benefits are probable, the Company has an intention and ability to complete and
use or sell the software and the costs can be measured reliably. The costs which can be capitalized include the cost of material, direct
labor,overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use. Research and development costs and software
development costs incurred under contractual arrangements with customers are accounted as expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of Tangible And Intangible Assets

At the end of each reporiing period, lhe Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assels or cash generating
units to determine whather there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order lo determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the racovarable ameunt of an individual asset, lne Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belangs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, or
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflecls current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unil) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased lo the
revisad estimale of ils recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have baen determined had no impalrment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A raversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless lhe relevant assel is carried at a revalued amount, in which case lhe
reversal of the impairment loss is lreated as a revaluation increase.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value (net of allowances) after providing for obsolescence and
other losses, where considered necessary. The cost comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cosls including
appropriate production overheads in the case of finished goods and work-in-progress, incurred in bringing such inventories to their present
location and condition. Trade discounts or rebates are deducted in delermining the costs of purchase.

In case of raw materials, stores & spares, work in progress, manufactured finished goods and traded goods, cost (net of tax credits wherever
applicable) is determined on a moving weighted average basis.

Net realisabte value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.




Classic Industries and Exports Limited

Notes forming part of financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated.)

1.6

1.8

Impalrment of non-financlal assets

At each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whelher there is any indicatlon that an asset may be Impairad. If any such indication
exisls, managament estimates the recaverable amount, Recoverable amount is higher of an assel's net selling price and value in use. Value
in use is the prasent value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an assel and from its disposal at the
end of the its useful life. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverahle amount, an impairment loss s recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent carrying amount exceeds recoverable amount. Assessment is also done at each Balance sheet
date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset in prior accounting periods may no langer exists or
may have decreased.

Leases

Effective from 1 April 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases” and applied to all lease contracts existing on 1 April 2019, On
svaluation of the lease arrangements, the company has identified lease arrangements which qualiies as lease as par the requirements of Ind
AS 116 for which a night-of-use assel and a corresponding lease lability has been created. For lease arrangements which does not qualify as
lgase as per the requirements of Ind AS 116, the same Is charged lo Statement of Profit & Loss as lease payments as an operating expense.

Al the date of commencemant of the lease, the Company recognizes a Right of use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all
lease arrangements under which it is a lessee, except for short-lerm leases and low value leases. For short-term leases and low value leases,
the Campany recognizes the lease payments as an expensaona straight-line basis over the term of ihe lease

ROU assels are depreciated from the date of commencement of the lease on a straight -line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. For leases under which the rate
implicit in the lease Is nat readily determinable, the Company uses ils incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at the
date of commencement of the lease in determining the present value of lease payments. Lease liabilities are re measured with a
corresponding adjustment fo the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment as to whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied lo lease liabilities is 10.40% p.a.

Employee Benefits
Employes benefits include wages & salaries, provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund and compensated absences.

(a) Short-term obligations
Liabilities recognised in respect of short-lerm employee benefits are measurad at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for the related service.

{b) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

(i) Defined contribution plan

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entiting them to the
contributions.

(i) Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with acluarial
valualions being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-measurement, comprising acluarial gains and losses, the effect of
the changes lo lhe asset ceiling (if applicable) and the relurn on plan assels (excluding net interest), is reflected Immediately in the Balance
Shest with a charge or credil recognised In other comprehensive income in the pariod in which they occur. The re-measuraments of the nat
dafined benefit liabilty are recognised directly In the other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Pasl service cosl s
recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendmeant. Net interast is caloulated by applying the discount rate al the beginning of the
period lo the net defined bengfil liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

» service cost (including eurrent service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtaiiments and seltlements);
« net interest expense or income; and
* re-measurement

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company's defined benefit
plans. Any surplus resulting from lhis calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plans or reductions in fulure contributions to the plans.

(iii) Liabiliies recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured al the present value of the eslimated future cash
outfows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up lo the reporting date.




Classic Industrles and Exports Limited

Notes forming part of financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount in INR Milllons, unless otherwise stated.)

1.9

1.1

1.12

Government Grants, Subsidles And Export Incentives .
Government grants and subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable assurance thal the Company will comply with the conditions
attached to them and the grants / subsidy will be received.

Governmenl grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assels are
recognised as deferred revenue in the balance sheet and transfarred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives
of the related assels.

Revenue grant is recognised as an income in the period in which related obligation is met.
Export Incentives eamed in the year of exports are treated as income.

Foreign Currency Transactions
The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees. The Indian Rupee is the functional currency of the Company. Transactions in foreign
currencies are initially recorded by the Company at spol rate at the clate the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Morietary assets and liabilities denominated in foraign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rales of exchange at the
reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlemant or translation of monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Non-monatary items that are measured in terms of historical cost ina foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured al fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when lhe fair value Is determined. The gain or loss arising on {ranslation of non-monetary items measured at fair value Is treated in line with
the recagnition of the gain or loss on lne change in fair value of the item (i.e., translalion differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
racognisad in OCI or statement of profit and loss are also racognised in OC| or stalement of profit and loss, raspectively).

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instrumants, such as, derivatives at fair value at each Balance Sheel date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid o lransfer a liabllity in an orderly transaction between market participants
al the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

i} In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability accessible to the Company.

All asssts and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

i) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markels for identical assats or liabilities

iiy Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

lii) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

The managment determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value meastrement. For the purpose of fair value disclosures,
the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. This note summarises accounting policy for fair value,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construclion or production of an assel that necessarily takes a subslantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed as finance
cost. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or tecalvable. Revenue is recognised when the company satisfies a
perfarmance obligation by transferring a promised good or service lo a custamer. An asset is transferred when the customer obtains control
of that assat. When a performance obligation s satisfied, an enlity shall recognise as revenue the amount of the transaction price that is
allocated to that performance obligation. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer retumns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from sale of goods Is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyar
and to the extent that it s prabable that the economic benefits will flow lo the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless
of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measurad at the fair value of the consideration received or recelvable, taking inta account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Conversion income is recognized as and when the services are rendered, as per the relative terms of the agreement with the parties
concerned.

In the case of sale of moulds, performance abligation is salisfied at a point of lime and the transfer of control normally coincides with the
clearance of malerial for despalch. In the case of sale of tyre building machinary, the performance obligations are satisfied over a period of
time, Revents Is recognised under the input method based on the ratio of actual costs incurred on the conlract up to the reparting date lo the
estlimated tolal cost of the contract as assessed and certified by the management.

A percentage of the consideration in respect of contract with customers is received as an advance at the time of origination of contract. In the
case salo of motilds, the remaining amount is recelved at the time of campletion of contract and satisfaction of all performance obligations. In
the case of tyre building machine, a major pertion of the remaining consideration is received at the lime of delivery of the machine, and the
balance amount is recaived upon successful installation and commissioning.

Revenue from services has been recognised as and when the service has been performed.
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Dividend income on investments is accounted for when the right to receive the payment is established, Interest income is reporied on an
acerual basis using the effective interest method and is included under the head “other income” in the Statament of Profit and Loss, Rental
income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the lease as per the termis of the base contract or such other systematic method
as considered appropriate.

Taxes
Tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred lax. Current tax is measured by the amount of tax expected to be paid to the
taxation authorities on the taxable profits after considering tax allowances and exemptions and using applicable tax rates and laws.

Current incame tax refating fo items recognised oulside profit or loss is recognised oulside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
incoma or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation lo the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Managemant periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax relurns with respect lo situations in which applicable iax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences betwaen the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible lemporary differences to the extent that it
is probiable that taxable profits will be available against which these deductible temporary differences can be ulilised. Such deferred tax assets
and llabiliies are not recognised if the temporary differance arises from the initial racognilion of assels and liabilties in a lransaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The camying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the exlent that it is no longer
probable that sufiicient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferrad tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assels reflects the tax consequences lhat would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or seltle the carrying amounl of its assets and liabilities.

Provisions

Provisians are recognized when the Company has a present legal obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic beneflts will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by the best estimate of the oulflow
of economic benefits required to seltle the obligation at the reporting date. When no reliabla estimate can be made, a disclosure is made as a
continganl llability. A disclosure for a contingent liabllity is also made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, bul
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Provisions are reviewed regularly and are adjusted where necessary to reflect the current
besl estimates of the obligation. Whara tha Company expects a provision lo be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separale
assat, only when such reimbursement is virtually certain.

If the effect of the time value of money is malerial, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance
cost.

Warranty provisions

The estimated liability for warranly is recorded when producis are sold. These estimates are established using historical information on the
nature, frequency and average cost of obligations and management estimates regarding possible future incidence based on corrective
actions on product failure. The timing of outflows will vary as and when the obligation will arise being typically up to three years. Initial
recognition is based on hislorical experience. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised annually.

Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non occurtence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingen! assets is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise. When an inflow of
economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities and contingent assels are
reviewed at each balance sheet date,




Classlc Industrles and Exports Limited

Notes forming part of financials statements for the year ended March 31,2023
(Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated.)

1.17 Cash and cash equivalents

14

o

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. .

For the purposs of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial racognition. Transaclion costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediataly in profit or
loss.

Financial Assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assels that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

All recognised financial assels are subsequently measured in their entirety at eilher amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

1.19.1 Classification of financial asset

Financial assets that meet the fallawing conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment loss (FVTPL) (except for
investments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

+ the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
(except for investments that are designated as a fair value through profit or loss on initial racognition):

« the asset is held within a business model whose objeclive is achieved both by collecting contraciual cash flows and selling financlal assets;
and

« the contraclual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

1.19.2 Amortised cost and Effective interest method

The efiective Interest method Is a methad of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effaclive inlerest rate is the rate that exaclly discounts estimated fulure cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interast
income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the Other Income.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

« it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

« on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of shiori-term profit-taking; or

«iis a derivative lhat is not designaled and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investmenis in equily instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the right to receive the dividands is estabiished
and it is probable that the economic benefils associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does nol reprasent a recovery of
part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

1.19.3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, uniess the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt instrument that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria (see above) are
measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the fair value through other comprehensive income
criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset may be designaled as al FVTPL upon inilial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistericy that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them
on different bases.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recagnised in profit or loss is included in the other income line item. Dividend on financial
assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company'’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount
of dividend can be measured reliably.
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1.19.4 Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial assets, and financials
guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expacted credil losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is
tha difference between all contractual cash fiows that are due lo the Company In accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shorifalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted affective interest rale
for purchased or originated credit-impaired financlal assets), The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the axpected life of thal financial instruments.

The Company measures the loss allowanca for a financial instrument al an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses If the credit
risk an that financial instrument has Increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since inltial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expeclad cradit losses.12-month expected credil losses are portion of the fife-lime expected cradit losses and reprasent the lifetime cash
shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reperting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over
the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifatime expected credil loss model in the previous period, but
determines at the end of a reporting period that the eredit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due 1o Improvement in
credit qualily as compared to the previous period, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on 12- month expecled credit
losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the
change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument. To make that assessment, lhe Company compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a defaull occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition and cansiders reasonable and supporiable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is
indicalive of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are wilhin the scope
of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expacted credit losses.

1.19.5 De-recognition of financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the

financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset lo another party. If the Company neilher transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to contral the transferred assel, the Company recognises Its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also racognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds raceived.

On de-recognition of a financial assel in ils entirety, the differance between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and recaivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recagnized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Campany retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
asset), the Company allocales the previous carrying amount of the financial asset batwaen the part it continues lo recagnise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of lhe relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference betwaen the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the considération received for the
part no longer racognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have olherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on Lhe basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

1.19.6 Foreign Exchange gains and losses

The fair value of finanacial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at
the end of each reporting period.

For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL,the exchange differences are recognised in profit
or loss except for those which are designated as hedging instruments in hedging relationship.

Financial Laibilities and Equity Instruments

1.20.1 Classificalion as debt or eqguity

Debt and equily instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of lhe conlraclual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

1.20.2 Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assels of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity

instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

1.20.3 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL. However, financial
liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach
applies, financial guarantee coniracts issued by the Company are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.
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1.20.3.1 Financial liabilitles at FVTPL )
Financial llabilities ars classified as al FVTPL when the financial llability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financlal liability is classified as held for trading if:

« it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

« on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

« itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liablity other than a financial liability held for trading may be designaled as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

« such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurament or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

« the financial liatility forms part of a Company of financial assets or financlal liabiities or bath, which s managed and iis performance is
evaluated an a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investment strategy, and information
about the Companying is provided intemally on thal basis; or

« it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments permits the entire
combined conlract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

1,20.3.2 Financlal liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost
Financial liabifities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent

accounting periods. The carrylng amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amoriised cost are determined based on
the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'finance costs' line item.

The effecliva interest method Is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating Interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exaclly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interesl rate, transaclion cosis and other pramiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

1.20.3.3 Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guaraniee contract is a conlract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs

because a specified debor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at:

+ amount of loss allowance determined In accardance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments; and

» amount initially recognised less, whera appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the revenue recognition policies
of Ind AS 115.

For financial liabilities that are denominated In a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the
foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amorlised cost of the instruments and are recognised in the other income.

The fair value of financial liabilities deriominated in a foreign currency is delermined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at
the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the fareign exchange component forms part of the fair
value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss.

1.20.3.4 Derscognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The

difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity share capital. Incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue of new shares are shown in other equity
under securities premium as a deduclion, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earings per share (EPS) are calculaled by dividing the nel loss / profit after tax for the year attributable fo equity shareholders by the
weightad average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by adjusting the number of
shares used for basic EPS with the weightad average number of shares thal could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares. Dilutive polential equity shares are deemed converied as of the beginnirig of the year, unless they have bean Issued at a later
date. The diluted potential equity shares have been adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value l.e.
average market value of outstanding shares.

In calculating diluted earnings per share, the effects of anti dilutive potential equity shares are ignored. Potential equity shares are anti-dilulive
when their conversion to equity shares would increase earnings per share or decrease loss per share.
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1.25

1.26

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make certain judgements and estimates that may
effect the application of accounling policies, reported amounts and related disclosures.

These judgments and estimates may have an impact on the assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and Incame and expense items for the period under review. Actual results may differ from these judgements and estimaltes.

All assumptions, expectations and forecasls that are used as a basis for judgments and estimates in the financial statements represent as
accurately an outlook as possible for the Company. These judgements and estimates only represent the interpretation of the Company as of
the dates on which they were prepared.

Important judgments and estimates relate largely to provisions, pensions, tangible and intangible assets (lives, residual values and
impairment), deferred tax assets and liabilities and valuation of financial instruments.

Specilfy others, if any.

Segment reporting

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in conformity with the accounting polities adopted for the Company. Revenue and
expenses have been identified to segmants on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Expenses, nat of
income, which relate to the Company as a whele and are nol allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been Included under
"Common unallocable charges, net".

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whareby profit before tax is adjusted for the effact of transactions of a non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals of past of future operating cash receipls or payments and items of income or expenses associate wilh investing or
financing cash flows. The cash flows fram operating, investing and financing activities are segregated.

Rounding off amounts
All amounts disclosed in financial statements and notes have been rounded off to ihe nearest millions as permitted in Schedule 1l of the Act,
unless otherwise stated.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standard or amendments lo the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounling
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounling Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2023, as below:

a) Ammendment to Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
palicy infarmation, together with other information, is malerial when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of
general purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
statements. / The Company is in the process of evaluating its impac!, if any, on the financial statemenils.

b) Ammendment to Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in
accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject lo measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting
policies require ilems in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncerlainty. The Company does not expect
this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. / The Company is in the process of evaluating its impact, if any, on
the financial statements.

c) Ammendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The
amendments narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so lhat it does not apply to transactions that, on initial recognition, give
rise to equal laxable and deduclible temporary differences. The Company is evalualing the impact, if any, in its financial statements.
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Classic Industries and Exports Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated.)

2.02 Investments

Particulars

As at 31.03.2023

As at 31.03.2022

A Investments in Equity Instruments- Quoted
Investment in equity instrument designated as at fair value through OCI (fully paid):
1,86,96,005 [Previous Year 2022 - 1,79,03,505) Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid
up in Apollo Tyres Limited (ATL) representing 2.94% [Previous Year 2022 - 2.82%)] of
the paid up capital of ATL

B. Investment in Preference Instruments - Unquoted
Investment in 0.01% Optionally Convertible Preference Shares
10,20,000 [Previous Year 2022 - 7,50,000] 0.01% Optionally Convertible Preference
Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up in Apollo International Limited (AIL)

C. Investment in subsidiary - Unquoted
Investment measured at ammortised cost:
a) 3,47,525 [Previous Year 2022 -1,00,000] Equity Shares of USD 1/- each fully paid up
in CIAEL Singapore Pte Ltd (Formerly known as CATL Singapore Pte Ltd) representing
100% [Previous Year 2021 - 100% ] of the paid up capital

b) 1,00,01,000 [Previous Year 2022 - 1,00,01,000 ] Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully
paid up in Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited representing 100% [Previous
Year - 100% ] of the paid up capital

D. Investment in Capital of Limited Liability Partnership :
Partners capital account in Sunrays Global Consultants LLP

5,980.85

632.54

26.84

100.10

170.00

3,419.57

454.29

6.96

100.10

170.00

6,910.33

4,150.92

Aggregate book value of:
Quoted investments
Unquoted investments

Aggregate market value of:
Quoted investments
Unquoted investments

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments:
Quoted investments
Unquoted inveslments

5,980.85
929.48

5,980.85
929.48

3,.419.57
731.35

3,419.57
731.35

Footnotes:
{1) Investment in Capital of Partnership Firm: In Sunrays Global Consultants LLP

Name of Partners

Capital Balance

As at 31.03.2023

As at 31.03.2022

Classic Industries and Exports Limited

170.00

170.00

Harish Bahadur

0.00

0.00

Name of Partners

Share of Profit/ Loss (%)

As at 31.03.2023

As at 31.03.2022

Classic Industries and Exports Limited

99.999%

99.999%

Harish Bahadur

0.001%

0.001%




Classic Industries and Exports Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
{Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated.)

2,03 Other financial assets

Particulars

As at 31.03.2023

As at 31.03.2022

Unsecured, Considered Good

i. In Fixed deposit with bank with maturity for more than 12 months from date of Deposit 6.08 5.70
il. Security Deposits 16.63 17.33
22.71 23.03

2.03.01 Balance with banks in Deposit Accounts (having maturity period of more than 12 months) includes Rs. Nil (Rs.Nil) held as security against Bank

Guarantees.

2.04 Non-current tax ts (net)

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
<en same Income Tax ( Net ) 39.28 38.70
39.28 38.70

2.05 Other non-current assets
Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
Capital advance 6.34 7.13
Prepaid expenses 4.75 0.39
11.09 7.52

2.06 Inventories

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022

Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value-

Raw materials 845.78 927.04
Work in progress 78.03 61.28
Finished goods 71.20 60.77
Packing Materials 8.98 14.70
Store and spares parls 54.26 52.57

1,058.25 1,116.36

2.06.01 Inventories written down to net realisable value during the year ended 31 March 2023 is Rs. 14.07 Millions

statement of profit and loss during the year.
2.06.02 Method of valuation of inventories - Refer Note 1.5 of Significant Accounting Policies.

2.06.03 Inventory of Raw Materials includes Goods in Transit of Rs. 54.75 Millions (Rs. 93.29 Millions)

2.07 Trade Receivables

(Rs. 5.78 Millions) recognised in the

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
Trade receivables considered good - securad
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 815.16 955.83
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk
Trade Receivables - credit impaired
815.16 955.83
Less : Provision of loss allowance
815.16 955.83
Further classified as:
Debts due by companies in which directors are interested 701.46 638.73
Debts due from others 113.70 317.10
815.16 955.83

2.07.01 Refer Note 2.36 for Detailed Ageing of Financial Year 2022-23 and Financial Year 2021-22




Classic Industries and Exports Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated.)

2.0BA Cash & Cash Equivalents

Particulars

As at 31.03.2023

As at 31.03.2022

Balance with banks

a. In Current Accounts 167.33 228.50
b. Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 3 months - 47.73
Cash on hand 0.11 0.30
167.44 276.53

2.08A.01 Balance with banks in Deposit Accounts (having maturity period of less than 3 months) includes Rs Nil (Rs.Nil) held as security against Bank

Guarantees.

2.08B Bank Balances other than cash and cash Equivalents

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022

In Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months from 202.34 122.08
date of Deposit

202.34 122.08

2.08B.01 Balance with banks in Deposit Accounts (having maturity period more than 3 months but less than 12 months) includes Rs.Nil (Rs.Nil) held as security

against Bank Guarantees.

2.09 Loans

Particulars

As at 31.03.2023

As at 31.03.2022

Current:
Loans Receivables considered good - Secured
Loans Receivables considered good - Unsecured:

i) Inter corporate Deposit 102.00 107.50
ii) Loans to related parties = -
Loans Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk = .
Loans Receivables - credit impaired = 7
102.00 107.50

2.09.01 Loans o related parties represents the repayable on demand advanced to its related concerns Rs.102.00 Millions (Rs.107.50 Millions). The details of

loans advanced to each party have been disclosed in Note No.2.33 - Related party transactions.

2.10 Other financial assets

Particulars

As at 31.03.2023

As at 31.03.2022

Unsecured considered Good:

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0.89 0.33
Interest accrued on other deposits 0.17 0.17
Interest receivable on loans 21.56 2331
Insurance Claim Receivable 0.49 -
Guarantee commission receivable 0.03 0.30
Advances to employees 1.00 1.08
Security deposit 16.99 173.65
Share of profit receivable from Sunrays Global Consultants LLP 76.84 203.25
117.97 402.09

2.10.01 Interest receivable on loans represents Rs 21.56 Millions (Rs.23.31 Millions) receivable from related parties.




Classic Industries and Exports Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
{Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated.)

211 Other current assets
Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
Unsecured, Considered Good
Advances to suppliers 28.71 47.20
Prepaid expenses 11.61 13.46
Discount Receivable - 0.03
Balance with statutory authorities 0.47 33.07
40.79 93.76
2.12  Share capital
Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
Authorised :
15,770,000 [Previous year 2022- 15,770,000] Equity shares of INR 10/- each with voting rights 157.70 157.70
Issued and Subscribed and Fully paid:
10,480,000 [Previous year 2022 -10,480,000] Equity shares of INR.10/- each, fully paid up 104.80 104.80
The Company has only one class of equity share capital having a par value of INR 10 per share, referred to herein as equity shares.
2.12.01 Reconciliation of shares at the beginning and at the end of the year
. As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
rt .03.
RamIculdrs No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Amount of shares as at the beginning of the quarter 1,04,80,000 104.80 1,04,80,000 104.80
Amount of shares as at the end of the quarter 1,04,80,000 104.80 1,04,80,000 104.80

2.12.02 Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Particulars

As at 31.03.2023

As at 31.03.2022

Sunrays Properties & Investments Co. Pvt Ltd. (Holding Company) - No. of Shares
Sunrays Properties & Investments Co. Pvt Ltd. (Holding Company) - Percentage Holding

1,04,78,994
99.99%

1,04,76,800
99.97%

2.12.03 Details of shares held by Promoters
Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year

Sr. No Promoter Name No. of Shares as | No. of Shares as
on 31st March on 31st March
2023 2022
1 |Sunrays Properties & investments Co. Pvt Ltd. (Holding Company) 1,04,79,994 1,04,76,800
2 Harish Bahadur (Nominee) 1 1
3 Kewal Krishan Malhotra (Nominee) 1 1
4 Pardeep Kumar (Nominee) 1 1
5 Kaushalendra Prakash Sharma (Nominee) 1 1
6 Rajan Sabharwal (Nominee) 1 1
7 Anuj Sood (Nominee) 1 1
8 Osiatic Consultants and Investments Private Limited - 3,194

No class of shares have been issued as bonus shares or for consideration other than cash by the Company during the period of five years immediately

preceding the current year end.

No class of shares have been bought back by the Company during the period of five years immediately preceding the current year end.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to number of equity shares held by the shareholders.




Classic Industries and Exports Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated.)

2.13 _ Other equity

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
A. Capltal reserve
Opening balance 13.08 13.08
Add: Transfer -
Closing balance 13.08 13.08
B. Retained earnings
Opening balance 4,955.98 4,581.10
Add: Net profit/ (lass) for the current year 280.90 378.90
Add: Re-measurement on post employment benefit obligation (net of tax) (5.18) (4.02)
Closing Balance 5,231.70 4,955.98
C. Investments FVTOCI reserve on equity instruments
Opening balance 1,353.20 1,901.31
- Fair valuation changes for the year 2,313.99 (688.77)
- Tax effect on fair valuation changes for the year (415.91) 40.66
Closing balance 3,251.28 1,353.20
8,496.06 6,322.27

2.13.01 Description of nature and purpose of each reserve

Capital reserve: Capital reserve was created on account of acquisition of the Pune unit of Apollo Tyres Limited in the year 2007.

Retained earnings: Retained earnings comprise of the company's prior years' undistributed earnings after taxes.

Reserve on equity instruments: This reserve is created by way of transfer of the changes (gain/ loss) arising on fair valuation of the equity instruments and is

an item of other comprehensive income.

2.14 Lease Liabilities

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
Lease liability 0.34 0.32
0.34 0.32
2.15 Long term provisions

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022

Provision far employee benefits:
Provision for leave encashment (unfunded) 7.93 7.91
Provision for Warranty Charges 5.15 2.63
13.08 10.54

2.15.01

Provision for warranty charges on sale of tubes & bladders and tyre building machines has been made in the books of account as per the estimate of the

management.

Tubes & Bladders

Tyre Building Machine & Mould

Particulars

As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022 | As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
Opening Balance (including current portion) 36.36 16.58 6.88 10.77
Add: Provision made during the year 35.96 24.20 3.70 2.20
Less: Current portion reclassified from long term (35.96) (36.36) (1.17) (4.25)
Less: Provision utilised during the year (0.40) - - -
Less: Provision written back during the year (35.96) (4.42) (4.26) (6.09)
Balance classified as Long Term 0.00 (0.00) 5.15 2.63
Provisions:
Current 35.96 36.36 1.17 4.25
Non-current - - 5.15 2.63




Classic Industries and Exports Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated.)

2.15.02 Recongciliation of Warranty Provision

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
Opening Balance (including current portion) 43.24 27.34
Add: Provision made during the year 39.65 26.40
Less: Provision utilised during the year (0.40) -
Less: Provision written back during the year (40.21) (10.50)
42,28 43.24

2.15.03

Provision for commissioning expenses represents provision created in respect of expenses to be incurred towards the commissioning of tyre building machines

sold and pending commissioning as at the year end.

Particulars Tyre Building Machines

As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
Opening Balance (including current portion) - 0.40
Add: Provision made during the year 1.60 -
Less: Current portion reclassified from long term (1.60) >
Less: Provision written back during the year - (0.40)
Balance classified as Long Term - =
Provisions:
Current 1.60 -
Non-gurrent . =

216 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
Assets
In respect of timing difference of expenses (834.08) (23.35)
Liability
In respect of liming difference of depreciation 1,846.13 630.97
1,012.05 607.62

2.16.01 Deferred tax relates to the following:

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
Deferred tax assets
On others 10.64 10.88
0On Loss as per Income Tax Act
On Voluntary Retirement Scheme 8.27 -
On re-measurements gain/(losses) of post employment benefit obligations 14.45 12.47
33.36 23.35
Deferred tax liabilities
On property, plant & equipment 88.00 93.17
On fair valuation (loss)/gain adjustments on preference instruments designated as FVTPL 4.70 1.00
On fair valuation (loss)/gain adjustments on equity instruments designated as FVTOCI 952.71 536.80
1,045.41 630.97
Net Deferred tax liabilities/ (assets) 1,012.05 607.62

2.16.02 Reconciliation of deferred tax

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
Opening balance of Deferred tax liability/ (asset) 607.62 658.64
Tax liability recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss (9.73) (8.02)
Tax liability recognized in OCL:
On re-measurements gain/(losses) of post-employment benefit obligations (1.74) (1.35)
On Fair valuation (loss)/gain adjustments on equity instruments designaled as FVTOCI 415.91 (40.66)
Closing balance of Deferred tax liability/ (asset) 1,012.05 607.62




Classic Industries and Exports Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated.)
2.16.03 Reconciliation of tax charge

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022

Profit before tax 360.93 515.76

Income tax expense (at rates applicable - 25.168%) 90.84 129.81
Tax effects of:

Exempt Income (16.00) (3.48)

Excess/ deficit provision of Income Tax in earlier years written back/ provided - 1.18

Impact of deferred tax created at a different rate (0.39) (0.08)

Interest under 234B and 234C 1.92 1.03

Expenses disallowed 3.66 8.41

Income tax expense 80.03 136.87

Tax expense as per Statement of Profit and Loss 80.03 136.87

2.17 Lease Liabilities

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
Current lease liability 0.02 0.02

2.18 Trade Payables
Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022

Trade Payables

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 25.16 31.38
{if) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 754.62 1,077.90
779.78 1,109.28

2.18.01 The company has taken steps to identify the suppliers who qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as defined under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008. Intimations have been received from some of the suppliers regarding their status under the said Act as at the

year end, based on which, principal amount unpaid to such suppliers as at the year end aggregating to Rs. 25.19 Millions (PY

2022-Rs.31.38 Millions) has been

included under Trade Payables and Other Financial Liabilities. In the opinion of the management, the impact of interest, if any, which may be payable in

accordance with the provisions of the Act, is not expected to be material. Refer Note-2.35a for MSME Act Disclosures.
2.18.02 Trade payables includes Rs. 547.30 Million (PY 2022- Rs 658.02 Million) payable to related party.

2.18.03 Refer Note 2.35b for detailed ageing for Financial Year 2022-23 and Financial Year 2021-22.

2.19 Other financial liabilities
Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
Capital creditors :
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.03 -
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3.81 0.19
Employee related payable 21.54 19.98
Accrued expenses 68.56 70.60
Other payables 2.24 1.56
96.18 92.33
2,20 Other current liabilities
Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
Statutory dues payable 14.11 6.43
Contract liabilities - Advance from customers:
From related parties 9.95 150.00
From others 1.32 10.85
Earnest Money Deposit 1.76 1.22
27.14 168.50




Classic Industrles and Exports Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
{Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated.)

2.21 Short term provisions

Particulars

As at 31.03.2023

As at 31.03.2022

Provision for employee benefits:
Provision for gratuity

29.75 21.03

Provision for leave encashment (unfunded) 4.66 4,28

Provision for warranty charges 3712 40.61
Provision for commissioning expenses 1.60 -

73.13 65.92

2.22 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 | As at 31.03.2022
Provision for Taxation (Net) 18.57 12.44
18.57 12.44




Classic Industries and Exports Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated.)

2.23 Revenue From Operations

Particulars

For the year
ended 31.03.2023

For the year
ended 31.03.2022

Revenue from contract with customers:
Sale of products:

Sale of services:

Sale of tubes & bladders 5,192.45 4,403.43
Sales of moulds, machine and machine components 634.82 771.63
Sale of compounds 804.94 1,091.69
Conversion Charges 135.67 182.33
Other services 23.88 13.70
Other operating revenues:
Sale of scrap 48.82 51.29
Sale of raw material 39.05 16.88
Loading & unloading charges 3.20 5.09
Freight Reimbursement 1.49 -
6,884.32 6,536.04

2.24 Other Income

For the year

For the year

Bardcpiars ended 31.03.2023 | ended 31.03.2022
Rental income 0.12 0.12
Interest income on fixed/ other deposits 9.20 8.53
Interest Income on loans to related parties 10.01 18.32
Interest on Security Deposit 0.07 0.02
Export Incentive Received 4.66 4.08
Guarantee commission income 0.02 0.28
Dividend Income from non-current investments 58.19 63.64
Unclaimed Liabilities written back 0.76 0.95
Gain on foreign currency transactions and translations (net) - 1.14

Gain on sale/disposal of fixed assets 0.28 -
Gain on fair valuation of Investments - Preference Shares 16.25 4.29
Other non operating income 3.44 2.02
Share of Profit from Sunrays Global Consultants LLP 63.56 13.83
166.56 117.22

2.25 Cost of material consumed

. For the year For the year
e ended 31.03.2023 | ended 31.03.2022
Inventory at the beginning of the period 994.31 952.81
Add: Purchases 4,800.39 4.471.03
5,794.70 5,423.84
Less: Inventory at the end of the period 909.02 994.31
4,885.68 4,429.53




Classic Industries and Exports Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated.)
2.26 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Particulars

For the year
ended 31.03.2023

For the year
ended 31.03.2022

Opening Inventory

- Work in progress 61.28 61.22
- Finished goods 60.77 43.26
Less: Closing Inventory

- Work in progress 78.03 61.28

- Finished goods 71.20 60.77

Net decrease/(increase) (27.18) (17.57)
2.27 Employee Benefits Expenses

: For the year For the year

Farticulars ended 31.03.2023 | ended 31.03.2022

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances 764.26 684.86

Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 61.45 57.05

Staff welfare expenses 46.70 33.05

872.41 774.96

2.28 Finance Cost

For the year

For the year

Emgans ended 31.03.2023 | ended 31.03.2022
Interest- on lease liability 0.03 0.03
Interest on unwinding of Deposits 0.02 0.04
Interest- Others 0.39 0.18
Other borrowing cost 4.09 4.74
4.53 4.99
2.01 Depreciation and amortization expense
- For the year For the year
Particulars ended 31.03.2023 | ended 31.03.2022
Depreciation 132.99 146.34
Amortization 1.95 2.76
Depreciation on right of use asset 0.50 0.50
Impairment Allowance 10.13 -
145.57 149.60




Classic Industries and Exports Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated.)
2.29 Other Expenses

For the year

For the year

GEFEEus ended 31.03.2023 | ended 31.03.2022
Power and fuel 372.15 333.39
Consumption of stores and spare parts 149.90 155.20
Mixing Charges - 0.11
Legal and professional charges 38.70 37.69
CSR Expenses 12.67 14.24
Rent 7.38 5.59
Repairs and Maintenance
Buildings 4.60 3.29
Machinery 31.46 19.34
Others 10.09 21.28
Rates and taxes 3.28 5.756
Insurance 14.43 13.13
Freight & forwarding 67.01 72.32
Sales Promotion Expenses 0.73 2.95
Transportation Charges - 0.00
Warehousing & custom clearing charges 0.14 1.10
Travelling and conveyance expenses 50.60 46.86
Postage, telegram & stationery 2.24 1.83
Auditors remuneration 1.07 1.04
Director's sitting fees 0.36 0.24
Loss on foreign currency transactions and translations (net) 5.59 -
Warranty charges 1.26 25.93
Commissioning Charges 1.60 -
Communication expenses 2.57 2.29
Security charges 9.31 9.96
Miscellaneous expenses 21.10 16.60
Book Debts Written Off - 2.39
Balances write off 0.70 -
Loss on sale/disposal of fixed assets - 3.42
Research & Development 0.03 0.05
808.97 795.99

2.29.01 Payments to the auditor:

For the year

For the year

Pantcularg ended 31.03.2023 | ended 31.03.2022

a. Audit fee 1.00 1.00
b. For certification fees 0.00 0.01
¢. Reimbursement of expenses 0.07 0.03
1.07 1.04

2.30 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/loss for the year attributable to equity holders by the

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the year

For the year

FRICCHISTS ended 31.03.2023 | ended 31.03.2022
Profit for the year 280.90 378.89
Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 1,04,80,000 1,04,80,000
Earnings per share (Basic & Diluted) 26.80 36.15




Classlc Industries and Exports Limited

Notes forming part of financlals statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023
{Amount in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated.)

2.31 Employae benefite
{A) Deflned Contribution Plans
During lhe year, the Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss - (Refer Note 2.27)

31.03.2023 31.03.2022

p ' Ci to provident fund 31.59 2810
Employers' Contribulion to Emplovee State Insurance 0.73 1.18
Total 32.32 30.29

(B) Deafined banefit plans - Gratuity
Liability for employee defined benefits plan has been detirmined by an Actuary, appainted for the purpose, In conformity with the principle set out In the Indian Accounting
Standard -19 the details of which are as under. The liability Is fully funded through an approved trust with Life Insuranca Corporation of India.

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
i} Actuarlal assumptions
Discount rate (per annum) 7.38% 7.22%
Rale of increase In Salary 5.50% 5.50%
Expecled average remaining working lives of employees (years) 16.91 18.06
Altrition rate 3.00% 3.00%
Il Changes in the p value of deflned beneflt obligatl
Prasent value of obligation at the beqinning of the year 124.45 107.88
Interest cost 8.99 7.33
Current sarvice cost 9.42 .84
Benelits paid (6.26) {4.69)
Actuarial (galn)/ loss on obligations 5.04 5.08
Present value of obligatlon at the end of the year* 142,64 124.45
*Included in provision for empl benelits (Refer note 2.21)
1) Change In fair value of assets
Fair value of plan assets - opening 103.42 93.60
Actual return on plan assels 7.49 6.92
Mortallty Charges (0.91) (0.83)
Employer’s contribution 9.14 8.42
Benefits paid {6.26) (4.69)
Falr value of plan assels - closing 112.88 103.42
iv} ized in the St: t of Profit and Loss
Currenl service cosl 9.42 8.84
Interest cost 8.99 7.34
Expected return on plan assels 7.47 637
Total ized in the t Profit and Loss* 10.94 9.81
“Inciuded In Employes benefits expense (Refer Note 2.27),
vl 1{i } ized as OCI in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Remeasurements during the year due to:
Changes In fi lel i (1.41) (3.66)
Changes in demographic assumptions - -
Experlence adjusiments 7.46 8,75
Actual retum on plan assels less Inlerest on plan assels 0.88 0.28
Total 6.93 5.37
vl) Assets and liablllties recognized in the Balance Sheet:
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 142.64 124.46
Falir value of plan assels 112.88 103.42
Net llabillty/ { asset ) recognized in Balance Sheet 20.76 21.04
Included In Short term Provislons (Reler note 2.21)
vll) Expected Contribution to the fund In the next year 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Gralulty 8.22 7.38
yiit} Sensitivity Analysis 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Gratuity is a lump sum plan and The cost of providing thesa benafils is typically less sensitive lo small changes in demographic assumplions. Tha key mctuarial assumptions to
which tha benafit ebligation resulls are particularly sensifive 1o are discount rate and fulure escalation rale. A I itivity lysis for significant assumption is as shown
below:
Impact on defined benefit obligation
Discount rate
0.5% increase -2.96% -3.28%
0.5% decrease 3.18% 3.53%
Rate of increase in salary
0.5% increase 3.22% 3.58%
0.5% decrease -3.03% -3.35%
Ix) profile of defined benefit d
Year
0-1Years 36.42% 33.60%
1-2 Years 1.88% 2.83%
2-3 Years 4,00% 1.82%
3-4 Years 2.65% 3.94%
4-5 Years 3N7% 2.771%

5 Years and onwards 51.88% 55.04%

The above disclosure are based on ir pacified by the dent acluary and relied upon by the audilors.
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Notes forming part of financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount in INR Milllons, unless otherwise staled.)
(C) Deflned benefit plans - Ieave encashment

i) Assets and liabilitios recognized in the Balance Sheet: 34.03.2023 21.03.2022
Opening Balance 12,20 11.25
Charged during the year 0.38 0.84
Net liability recognised in Balance Sheet 12.59 12.20
Included in non-current provision (Refer Note 2.15) 7.93 7.91
tncluded in current provislon (Refer Note 2.21) 4,66 4,28

The above disclosure are based on information specified by the independent actuary and relied upon by lhe auditors.

232 Leases
{l) Operating leases where Company is a lessoa:
Effeclive from 1 April 2019, the Company adopled Ind AS 116 "Leases™ and applied lo all lease conlracts existing on 1 April 2019, On luation-of the lease vl 15, the
company has identified lease arrangements which qualifies a2 lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116 for which a right-of-usa assel and a corresponding lease liability has
been created. For lease arrangements which does not qualify as lsase as per (he requiremonts of Ind AS 116, the sume Is charged to Stalement of Profil & Loss 25 loase
paymenls as an operating expense.

a) Future mini rentals payable under {lab! ting leases are as follows:
i) The company has 2 feasad prenises at Kochi which has a remaining lease periad of 72 years and 74 years respectively for which right-of-use asset has been created. The
la far abligatt minimum lease payments over the lease lerm In respect of the aforesald leases is set out below:

Particulars LI et
" 31.03.2023 31.03.20
Within one year 0.02 0.02
Adler one year but not more lhan five years 0.09 0.09
Maire than five years 13.33 13.35
13.44 13.46
The prasent value of above obligation s set out a5 under:
5 As at As at
Rarticutare 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Wiihin one year 0.02 002
Afier one year bul nol more lhan five years 0.08 0.08
Mora than flve years 0.26 0.25
0.38 0.35
1)) The lease liability are presented In the statoment of financlal position as follows:
. As ot Asat
Rarticulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Mon Current 034 0.32
Currant 0.02 0.02
0.36 0.24
ily The pany has leased premises at Pune and Chennai which have remalning lease perlod of 67 years and 83 years respectively. In this regard, no payments for the sald

premises is to be paid in future as the enlire consideration on entering into (he lease agreements were discharged upfront. Hence, on account of the same no separate lease
liability is created. However, owing 1o the nalure of the arrangement, the asset so capllalised in earlier psriods has now been disclosed as right-of-use asset.

iv} The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised is 10.40%.

v) The right-of-use asset and depreciation charge on the above has been disclosed under Note 2.01 of lhe Financlal Statements. Inlerest expense on lease liabllities are disclosed
under Note No.2.28 of the Financlal Stalements.

vl) Total cash outflow pertaining to above leases during the year Is Rs. 0.02 Millions.

b) Future minimum rentals payable under cancellable operating leases are as follows:

The company has taken on rent caeftain office premises, most of which contaln & renewsl option on a periodic basis at the option of the company, with the renewal periods ranging
betwean 2 to 5 years. Such arrangements are cancellable with insignificant penalty. Exp t de such renlal arang amount to Rs.7.38 Million (Rs.5.59 Million) have
been charged lo the Statamen! of profit and loss, since it does not partake the character of lease as lakd down in Ind AS 116 - 'Leases".

As at As at
Rarticulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Within ope year 1,53 1.34
Afler one year but not more than five years 533 541
Mare than five years 273 254
8.58 .29
Description of significant ing lease arr t
The company has given refundable interes! free security depasits under the leasal rantal ag ts. Al a e eontain provision for 1 &t tha option of eilher party, Al
Bgn ts provide for 1 jon on sub leasa,
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Notes forming part of financials slaiements for the vear ended March 31, 2023
(Amount in INR Milllons, unless otherwise stated.)
2.33 Related Party Disclosures:
(A) Names of related partles and description of relationship as Identifled and certifled by the Company:

Particulars Name of the Party
HoldIng company Sunrays Properfies and Investments Co. (P) Ltd.
Subsidlaries CIAEL Singapore Pte Ltd

(Formerly known as CATL Singapore Pte Ltd)
Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

Step - Down subsidiaries Premedium Pharma Limited, Nigeria

Firms in which company has substantial interast Sunrays Global Consultants LLP

Companies in which directors are interesled Apollo Tyres Limited

Apollo Vredestein B. V

Artemis Medicare Services Lid.

Apolio Tyres (Hungary) Kft

Apollo Tyres Global R&D B.V.
Constructive Finance Private Limited
Apollo Tyres South Africa (Pte) Ltd.

PTL Enterprises Limilad

Leto Realtors Private Limited

Landmark Farms and Housing Pvt Ltd
Polar Energy Infratech Private Limited
Milers Global Private Limlted
Swamganaga Consuitancy Private Limited
OSK Holdings Privale Limited

Bharat Gears Limiled

Sunrays Medi Equipment Private Limited
Fortune Propmart Private Limited
Sunlife Trade Links Private Limited

Apolio Radlal Tyres Limiled
Apollo Automolive Tyres Limited
UFO Moviez Limited

Company in which Holding has Invested Chakralech Limiled

Other Related Party Apolio Logisolutions Ltd

Jaisal Limited (U.K.)
Apollo Inlernational Ltd

Trusts in which Director and/or relalives of director |Neeraj Family Trust
are Interested
Shallni Family Trust

Kanwar Intemational Trust

Kanwar Family Trust

Arlemls Education & Research Foundation
Artemis Health Sciences Foundalion
Apollo Foundation Trust

BST Emp. Co-op Thrifi & Credil Sociely Ltd

Firms in which Directors and Relatives of Directors |OSK Consullants LLP
have substanllal Interest

O & T Consultants LLP
Particul. Name of the Party
Key Managemenl Personnel Mr. Naveen Kapur (Whole Time Director)
Mr. K Radhakrishna Pillai (Manager) (Upto 14/09/2022)
Mr Rupak Saxena (CFO)

Ms. Neha Mishra (Company Secrelary) (From 01/07/2022)

Ms, Mona Bhandari (Company Secrelary) (Uplo 30/06/2022)
Direclors Mr. Onkar Kanwar (Director)

Mr. Sunil Tandon (Director)

Ms.Devlina Chakravarty (Director)

Mr. Tapan Mitra (Non Executlve Director}

Mr. Harlsh Bahadur {Non Executive Director) (From 22.03.2023)
Relative of KMP Mrs. Taru Kanwar (President)

Note: Relaled parties and their relationships are as identified by the management and relied upon by the auditors.
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Notes forming part of financlals stetements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount in INR Milllons, unless otherwise stated.)
(B) Details of transactions with related party in the ordinary course of business for the year ended:

As at As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Sales
Apollo Tyres Limited 5,056.91 451046
Apollo Vredastein B. V - 0.31
Apollo Tyres (Hungary) Kft 102.76 11549
Conversion Income
Apollo Tyres Limited 106.28 178.12
Other Services
Apollo Tyres Limied 26.66 13.70
Dividend Income
Apollo Tyres Limited 58.19 63.64
Interest Income
Apollo Logisolutions Ltd 1.55 10.39
Premedium Pharmaceuticals Pvt. Limited 8.46 7.92
Premedium Pharmaceuticals Pvt, Limited 0.02 0.28
of Exp 1 4
Apollo Tyres Limited 3.04 5.00
imb t of pald
Apollo Tyres Limited 1283 12.60
M t and Other Exp
Apollo Tyres Limiled 1.60 1.69
Purchases of Raw Matarlal
Apollo Tyres Limited 862.19 584.74
CIAEL Singapore Ple Ltd 912,13 988.48
Rent Recelved
Apollo Tyres Limited 0.12 0.12
Rent Pald
Apollo Tyres Limiled 1.08 1.08
Inter corporate deposits given
Premedium Phammaceuticals Pvt Ltd - 107.50
Security deposit recelved back
‘Apolio Loglsolutions Lid. 150.00
Inter corporate deposits Recelved Back
Premedium Pharmaceuticals Pvt Ltd 5.50 -
Investments made
Apolle Tyres Limited 247,20 -
Apolio International Limited 162.00 450.00
CIAEL Singapore PTE LTD 19.88
Medical Expenses
Mre.Taru Kanwar 11.82 -
Remunsration
Salary - Mrs.Tar Kanwar 93.99 82.75
Salary - Mr. Naveen Kapur 37.27 34.43
Salary - Mr: Rupak Saxena 5.18 5.15
Salary - Mrs. Neha Mishra (From 01/07/2022) 0.42 -
Directors Sitting Fee
Mr. Onkar Kanwar 0.08 0.03
Mr. Hartsh Bahadur 0.01 0.03
Mr. Tapan Mitra 0.10 0.07
Ms. Devlina Chakravarty 0.08 0.04

Mr. Sunil Tandon 0.13 0.07
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As at As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Professional Fees
K. Radhakrishna Plllai(From 14/09/2022) 5.75 11.00
Ms. Mona Bhandari (Uplo 30/06/2022) 0.07 0.26
CSR Donatlon
Apollo Tyres Foundation 12.67 14.24
Share of Profit
Sunrays Global Consultants LLP 63.56 13.83
Other benefits to key management personnel As at As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Leave Llabllity
Mrs.Taru Kanwar (President) 3.12 2.81
Mr. Naveen Kapur {Whole Time Director) 0.72 0.68
Mr. Rupak Saxena 0.11 0.10
Gratuity Liability
Wrs, Taru Kanwar (President) 47.42 39.38
Mr. Naveen Kapur (Whole Time Director) 253 1.99
Mr. Rupak Saxena (CFO) 0.32 0.18
(C) Amount due to/from related party as on: As at As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
1 s (as per Fi ial St: )
Apollo Tyres Limited * 5,980.85 3,419.57
Apolio International Limlted * 632.54 454,29
CIAEL Singapore Ple Ltd 26.84 6.96
Premedium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited 100.10 100.10
Sunrays Global Consultants LLP 170.00 170.00
Trade Payable
Apollo Tyres Limited 200.80 263.30
CIAEL Singapore Pis Ltd 346.40 394.72
Advances from Customars
Apollo Tyres Limited - 150.00
Trade Recelvables
Apollo Tyres Limited 693.17 590.15
Apollo Vredestein B.V. - 9.50
Apollo Tyres Limited {Hungary) Kft. 8.22 38.97
CIAEL Singapore Ple L\d - 0.13
Loans Recoverable
Premedium Pharmaceuticala Privats Limited 102.00 107.50
Directors Sitting Fees payable
Mr. Harish Bahadur 0.01 -
Mr. Tapan Mitra 0.01 -
Mr. Sunil Tandon 0.01 -
Securily deposits glven
Apolio Logisolutions Ltd - 150.00
Interest Racelvable
Sunrays Global Consullants LLP 6.82 6.82
Apollo Logisolutions Ltd - 9.35
Premedium Pharmacautical Privale Ltd. 14,74 743
° - P
Premedium Pharmaceulical Private Lid. 0.03 0.30
Share of profit recelvable
Sunrays Global Consultants LLP 76.84 203.25

* Amounts as per Fair Value as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
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2.34 Contingent liabllities and commlitments As at As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Contingent Llablilities
a) Claifms against the company nat scknowledged as dabt;
1y On account of dispute under Central Exciss Act, 1944 {excludes interest thereon) 528.02 528.02
i} On 4 of di panding | under Income tax Act, 1961 10.87 21.94
iy TDS and TCS Traces Defaults 0.17 0.19
b) Comp: claim by employee under Employee State Act, 1948 = =
¢) Bank Guarantee to Maharashtra Pllution Control Board (MPCB) 0.60 0.60
d) Incremental statutory bonus liabilities for the FY 2014-15 not provided for pursuant to Kerala 595 595
High Court stay order
e) Corp to P ium Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (Whoily Owned Subsidiary) (FY 2021-22 - Rs. - 40.00
40 Mns Outstanding)
Commitments
Estimated amount of t ining to be ted on capital account and not provided for {Net of capital 13.46 17.76
advances)
Total 559.07 614,46

2.35a Dues to micro and small enterprises
Dues to Micro Small & Medium Enterprises have been determined to the exlent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the company. This has
been relied upon by the audilors. According to the records available with the Company certain amount have been identified as dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act’), but amounts are not due beyond the appointed day during the year .The disclosure pursuant to the said MSMED Act

are as follows:
As at As at
LT 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Principal amount due lo suppliars registerad under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at 2518 31.38
year end
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and rémaining unpaid as at year end - -
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under lhe MSMED Act, beyond lhe appointed day - -
during the year
Interest paid, olher than under Section 16 of MSMED Acl, to suppliers registered under the - -
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, N -
beyond the appolnted day during the year
Interest due and payabl ppli gl under MSMED Act, for payments already - -
made
Furlher inleresl remaining due and payable for earlier years 0.02 0.02
2.35b Ageing Schedule for Trade Pay
1. For Financlal Year 2022-23
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from Due Date of Paymant
Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 Year 2.3 Yoars More than 3 Total
ears
1) Miero, small and medium entarprises 18.90 B.26 - - - 25.16
T126.85 27.32 0.38 - 0.08 754.62
2, For Financial Year 2021-22
Particulars Outstanding for following pariods from Due Date of Payment
Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 Year 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
YOars
- 30.50 0.88 - - 31.38
855.19 11247 1.80 0.24 1.70 1.077.90
iviD d - Others a ¥ - = . =
v) Unbilled Dues . . = - . <
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2.36 Agelng scheduls for Trade ivabl
1. For Financlal Year 2022-23

Particulars Qutstanding for followlng perlods from Due Data of Paymont
Not Due Less than 6 months | 8 months to 1 Year| 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total

1) L puted Trade R bles - Consldered 668.08 144,36 1.54 0.31 0.56 031 815.16
Good
ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have . - - + . - -
slgnificant Increase in Credit Risk
I1l) UndisputedTrade fvables - Credlt b = - . "
Impaired
Iv) Disputed Trade Recelvables - Considerad B = = N - = =
Good
v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have - - - - - - -
|significant increasae in Credit Risk
vl) DisputedTrade Recelvables - Credlt Impalred = - s - - E -
[vil) Unbllled Dues = = . - - &

2. For Financial Year 2021-22

Particulars Dutstanding for following periods from Due Date of Payment
Not Dua Less than 6 months | 6 months to 1 Year|  1-2 Years 2-3 Yaars More than 3 Years Tolal

U puted Trade Recelvables - Consldered 709.72 210.90 34.09 0.88 0.13 013 955.83

Good
ii) Undisputed Trade Racelvables - which have - 2 =

significant increase in Credit Risk

jii) UndisputedTrade Racelvables - Credit = 3 = S T
Impalred

iv) Disputed Trade i - Consldered - . : . = . -
Good

v) Disputed Trade Recelvables - which have = - X

significant Increase In Credit Rlsk
vi) DisputedTrade Receivables - Credit Impaired - - = E .

vll} Unbilled Dues - = = =
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2,37 Disch an Undisclosed |
There have nol been any transactions which are not recorded In thia biooks of accounts that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year In the tax assessments
such as Saarch or Survey or any olher relevant provisions of Incoma Tax Act, 1961

238 E: diture t in Corporate Social Rasy ibility (CSR) Activitias -
As per seclion 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a ANy, ing the applicability threshold, needs to spend al least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding
threa financial years an corporate social responsibllity {CSR) activities. A CSR commiitee has been formed by the Company as per the Act.
As at As at
Particulars 31.03,2023 31.03.2022
Amotnt spent during thie year on
(i) Construction/acqulsition of an assel - =
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 12.67 14.24
12.67 14.24
Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of lhe Act
for current financlal year 12.67 14.24
Total 12.67 14.24
‘Excess spent during the previous year avallable -0.20 -0.29

for set off

a. Nature of CSR Actlvitles:-

The activities have been imp d through Impl ing Agency Apollo Tyres Foundation having CSR Registration Number -CSR00000622

N f the Project Ttem from the list of aclivities in schedule | Amount spent for

amg of the Trolec Vi to the ACT the project In
Skill building & income generatlon project for Livelihood Enhancement Projecis 1.38
women
Park davelopment and mainlenance Ensuring Environmental Sustainabllity, 0.06
Ecological Balance
Development and maintenance of End of Lile Tyres | Ensuring Environmenlal Sustainabilily, 0.22
(ELT) play structure in Govl. schools Ecological Balance
Classroom selup & beautification in Govt, Primary  |Rural Development 0.28
School
Maintenance of water well Rural Development 0.11
Skill building & income generation project for Livelihood Enhancement Projecls 4.72
women
Gram Samruddhi Project Livelihood Enhancement Projecis 340
General heallh program in community Promoling Health Care Including Preventive 2.00
Heallh Care
Blanket distribution to under privileged rural Eradicaling Poverly 0.50
community
Total 12.67

b. Details of Related Party Transactions
The Gompany made a donation of Rs. of Rs.12.67 million to Apollo Tyres Foundation Fund during Financial Year 2022-23. This donation was in line with the Company’s CSR
obligatlon of Rs. 12,67 Millien for Financlal Year 2022-23,

2.39 Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

2.40 Disclosures on Delay In Reglstration of Charges
There has been no delay in registration of charges during the year.

2.41 Disclosure regarding wilful defaulter
The company has not been declared a wilfull defaulter by anybank or financlal tnstitution or other lender

2.42 Discl garding tr i with struck off companies
The p has not entered into any ions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companles Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956

2.43 Dlscl regarding pli with Number of Layers of Companles
The company is in compliance wilh the number of leyers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017.

2.44 Compliance with Approved Schemes of Arrangement
No scheme of arrangements were filed or approved during the year under purview.
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2.45 Ratios

2.46

Varlation Variatlon %
Ratlo N t D Inat s °n2ls;;°h 81 Asagnzl\::;ch Increase/ Increase/
: (Docrense) |  (Decremse) |

1. Current Ratlo Current Assels Current Liabilities 2.52 212 0.39 18.80%
2. Debt Equity Ratlo Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 0.00 0.00 -0.00 0.00%
3. Return on Equlty Ratlo Net profit afler tax Average 0.04 0.06 -0.02 -3573%

shareholder's equity
4. Inventory Tumover Ratlo Cost of goods sold Average invenlory 447 4,06 0.41 10.07%
5. Trade Receivablas Turnover Ratio Net credit sales Average accounis 7.77 6.87 0.91 13.18%

recalvables
6. Trade Payables Tumover Ratio Net credit purchases | Average accounts 5.08 4,37 0.72 165.43%

payables
7. Net Capltal Turnover Ratlo Net sales Working capital 4.56 4,02 0.54 13.46%:
8. Net Proflt Ratlo Net profit Net sales 0.04 0.06 -0.02 -29.61%
9. Return on Capital Employed Earnings before Capital employed 0.04 0.07 -0.04 0.00%

inlerest and taxes

2.45.01 There are no outstanding borrowings as on 31st March 2023.

Segmant raporting

disclosure of

The Company foliows Ind AS 108,

ing’ which

its oparating segments as Job Work for Tyra Indusiry, Manufac;uring of Tubes, sala of Tyre Building Machines and Moulids. Hence no

furnished herewith.
Segment Revenus

Job Work Income for Tyre Industry
Manufacturing of Tubes & Compound
Mould

Tyre Building Machine

Unallocated Income

Segment Result

Job Work for Tyre Industry

N facturing of Tubes & C: d
Mould

Tyre Building Machine

Unallocated Expenses
Total Profit/ Loss Before Tax
Income Taxes

Net Profit

Segmant Assals

Job Work for Tyre Industry
Sale of rubber for Tyre Industry
Mould

Tyre Bullding Machine
Unallocated Assels

Segment Liabilitles

Job Work for Tyre Industry
Sale of rubber for Tyre Industry
Mould

Tyre Bullding Machine
Unallocated Linbilities

2.45.02 The dacrease in Relurn on Equity Ralio and Net Profit Ratio is due to decrease in profit mainly on account of increase in Raw material prices and employee benefit expenses

| infarmation for the operating segments of the Company. The Company has idantifisd

te segmaent inf tion has basan
As at As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
135.67 182,33
6,000.45 5,512.63
378.28 598.76
280.29 186.57
256.21 172.98
7,050.90 6,653.25
135.67 182.23
366.87 417.69
100.70 188.53
127.59 81.83
730.83 870.26
626.11 527.46
360.93 515.75
80.03 136.87
280.90 378.48
As at As at
31.03.2023 24.03.2022
- 25.26
2,311.03 2,498.00
623.31 652.48
5.16 22.14
7.881.68 520616
10.621.15 §,494.03
903.69 1,225.82
18.45 30.05
170.05 169.02
928.10 842.08
2.020.29 6.97
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There are nosig nofi-cash Included in seg expenses, other han depreciation and amortization expenses In respect of segment assels.
The following table gives delails in respect of percenlage of revenues generaled from top and from tr ions with ¢ amounting to 10 percent or
more of Company’s revenues from product sale:
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Revanue from top customer 5,189.85 4,702.27
R from o coninibuling 10% or more to the Company’s revenues fram product sale 5,189.85 4,702.27

Secondary Seament (Geographical)
“The Company's operations are locatad in India, and its overseas operations does not meet the criteria required of reportable segment, and hence has not been disclosed. All other
assets-and llabilities of the Campany are located in India.

2.47 Partlculars of loans given, made, glven or sacurlty provided
Particulars Nature Amount {Mns) Purpose of Reclplent
CIAEL Singapore Pte Lld Invesiment in 19.88 | Expansion of business of Whelly
subsidiary Qwned Subsidiary
Apollo Tyres Limited Invesimant in equity 247.29 Caplial Appreciation
shares
Apollo Inlernational Limited Invesment in 162.00 Not Applicable
Opllonally Convertlble
Preference Shares

2.48 No furids have bean advanced of loaned or invested (eilher from borrowed funds or share premium or any ether sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
personis) or entity{ies), Including foreign enfities {"Intermadiaries”), with the understanding, whether rocorded In wiiting or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whather, diractly
ar indlrectly land or invast In other persons or entitles identilied in any mannar whatsoaver by or on behalf of the C {"Ultimate B leries”) or provide any guarantes,
security or the kke on behall of the Ulimale Beneficiaries.

No funds have boen received by the Campany from any person{s} or entity(ies), including foreign antities (Funding Parties®), with the undarstanding, whethar recorded in writing
or olherwisa, ihal the Comapny shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest |n other persons or antities identified in any manner whalsoaver by or on bahalf of the Funding
Party ("Ditimato Beneficiarias™) or provide any guarantes, securily or fhe like on hahall of the Ultimate Beneficlarles.

2.49 Fair valuos of fi ial assots and fal Nabllities
Tha falr value of olhar current financial assats, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables i ts trade payables, short-term b ings and other financlal liabililies
approximate the cammying amounts bacause of Iha sharl lerm nature of these financial instruments.

The amortized cost using elfective interest rate (EIR) of non-current financial assels consisting of security and term deposits are not significanlly different from the carrying
amount.

Financlal assets that are neilher past due nor Impaired Include cash and cash equlvalenls, ily d Its, term deposlts, and other financial assets.

The carrying values of non-current security deposits and non-current term deposits are not signil and therefore the impact of fair value is not considered for above disclosure.
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Notes forming part of financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount In INR Millions, unless otherwise staled.)

2,50 Fair valus higrarchy
Tha following Is the hi wy for ining and losing the fair value of it by valuation technique:
« Lavel 1 - Quoted prices | jjusted) in-active kets for id ! pssals of
« Lovel 2 - Inputs othar than guoted prices included within Level 1 that ara observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

« Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or llabllitles Lhat are not based on observable market data (unobservable Inputs).

The following table presants fair value hisrarchy of sssels and finbilities measured at fair valus cna racurring basis:

Hierarchy As at Asat
Partlculars {Level) 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Financlal Assets mgnsured at Falr value through Other Comprehensive Income
Investments in Equity instruments FVTOCI 1 5,980.85 3.419.57
Flnanclal Assets measured at Fair value through Profit or Loss
Investments in Preference Instruments FVTPL 3 632.54 454.29

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

The following table sumamrises the quantitative information about the significant unobservable inpuls used in lavel 3 fair value measurementls.

Particulars Fair value as at Significant Input Value Sensltivity
unobservable
31-Mar-23] 31-Mar-22 inputs 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Unquoted optionally converlible preference share 632.54 454.29 Risk-adjusied 12.59% 13.26% 2023: An increase of 5% would
discount rate dacrease the fair value by Rs. 16.24

Millions and a decrease of 5% would
increase lhe fair value by Rs. 16.81
Millions

2022: An increase of 5% would
decrease the fair value by Rs. 2.59
Millions and a decrease of 5% would
increase the fair value by Rs. 2.67
Millions

Terminal growth rate 5.00% 5.00% 2023: An increase of 5% would
decrease the fair value by Rs. 16.24
Millions and a decrease of 5% would
increase the fair value by Rs. 16.81
Milllons

2022: An increase of 5% would

| decrease the fair value by Rs. 2.59
Millions and a decrease of 5% would
increase the fair value by Rs. 2.67

Millions
Catsgory wise classification of financial instrumants is as follows:
As at As at
Partlculai
i NotejNo- 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Financlal Assets measurad at Fair value through Other Comprehensivi Income
Investments in Equity instruments FVTCCl 202 5,680.85 3A19.57

3,419.57

5,880.85

Financial Assets measured at Fair value through Profit or Loss

Investmants In Prefersnce Inatrumants FVTPL 202 632.54 45429
632,54 454.29

Financla) Assets measured at amortlsed cost
Non Currenl:

i. Invesimenis 2.02 296.94 277.06
ii. Other financlal assets 2,03 2271 45.97
Current:
i. Trade Receivables 2,07 815.16 973.34
Il. Cash and cash equivalents 2.08A 167.44 276.53
1ii. Bank Balances other than (i) above 2.088 202,34 122.08
iv. Loans 2.09 102.00 107.50
v. Other financial assels 2.10 117.97 379.14
. 1,724.58 2,181.62
Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Non Current:
|, Lease Llabliities 214 0.34 0.32
Current:
i. Lease Liabilittes 217 0.02 0.02
1. Trade Payables 218 779.78 1,126.78
lil. Othar financial liabilities 219 86,18 92.33

876,32 1.219.45
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2.59

{(A)

Fi ial risk bjectives and pofici

The Company Is expased lo varjous financial risks. These risks ana calegorized into market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, foreign currancy risk. The l.':cmpén)’s risk
managamani is coordinated by the Baard of Directors and focuses on securing long lerm and short term cash flows. The Company doas not engaga in trading of financial assets
for speculalive purposes.

Market risk
Markel risk represents Lhe risk of loss that may impact our financial pasitian due 1o adverse changes in financial market prices and rales. We are exposed to market risk primarily
due 1o fluctualions in inlerest rales as described fully below. We da nat hald nor issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

(1) Forelgn currency sensitivity

The C: [ kas trar i d inated in foreign currency malinly in US Dollar and Euros, which are subject to the risk of exchange rate flucluations. Financial
assels and liabilities denominated in fareign currency, are also subject to reinstatement risks. The Company presently does not hedge its exposures in foreign currency due to the
Iimpact in the statement of profit or loss not being materlal on account of such fluclualions.

Faoreign curmency denominated financial assets and liabilifigs which expose the Company to currency risk are disclosed balow.

Particulars Forelgn Currency As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022

(FC} Amount In FC Amount In INR_Amount [n FC__Amount in INR
Financial liabilities:
Trade Payables usD 3.54 291.00 6.47 491.45
Trade Payables EUR 0.05 482 0.02 1.35
Capilal Credilors UsD - - - -
Capilal Creditors EUR 0.00 0.35 - -
Flnanclal assets:
Trade Receivables EUR 0.10 8.68 0.57 48.09
Trade Receivables uso 0.00 0.20 041 3047
Sensitivity

The following lable details the Company's sensilivity to a 1% increase and decrease in the rupee against the relevant foreign cumencles.

The sensilivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts Lheir transiatlon at the year-end for a 1% change in foreign currency
rates, wilh all other variables held conslant.

____ Impactin Statement of Profit and Loss far 1% changa ______
I As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
INR/USD {Nel Payabla) 2.91 4.91
INR/EUR (Nst Payabla) 0.05 0.01
INRVELIR (Net Receivable) 0.08 0.48
INR/USD (Net Receivable) 0.00 0.30
There are no hedged foreign currency ivables or payables as at Bal Sheet date.
The pariicutars of unhedged lems as at Balance Sheet dale is as under:
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31,03.2022
Particulars Foreign Currency Indian Farelign Indian
Rupees Currency Rupees
Payables:
usD 3.54 291,00 647 491,45
EURO 0.06 5.17 0.02 1.35
Recelvables
usD 0.00 0.20 0.41
EURD 0.10 A68 0.57

(11} Interest rate risk

The company is exposed lo interest rate risk as the company borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is ged by the pany by mainlaining an
appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will luctuate because of changes in market interes! rates. The Company's exposure to
the risk of changes in market interest rales relates primarily o the Company's Investmenls.

Interost rate sensitivity

Our expesira lo market risk for changes in interes) rates refates primarily to our cash and cash equivalents, other bank bal and inv ts. The company doas not use
darivative financial instruments to hedge interast rate exposure. The company's cash and cash equlvalents, other bank balances and Investments as of March 31, 2023 and
March 31, 2022 were Rs.375.86 Millons and Rs.404,30 Millions respectively. The company invest primarily in' highly liquid, money market funds and bank fixed deposis. Because
of the shart-term nature of the majority of the Interest-bearing ities the comp halds, the I i that & 10% fluctuation In the intarest rates applicabls 1o our
cash and cash equivalents and Investments would nat have a materlal effect on our financial condition or results of operations. The company doesn'l hava any liabiliies with
having impact for Inlerest Rate Sensitivity.

Interest raie tisk exposire

. As ot As at
Reuiciole 31,03,2023 31.03.2022
Variable rale barrawing - -
Tolal borrowinas disclosed under financial liabitities - -
Sensitivity
Below is tha sensitivity of prefit or loss in interest rates:
Particulars As at As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Interast ratas — change by 100 basis points (100 bps) = =
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{B) Credit risk
‘Credit risk is the risk thal counterparty will default on its contraclual obligations resulling in financial loss to the pany. The pany has adopled a policy of only dealing with

creditworihy customers.

Financial inst that p lally subjact tha Company to ions of cradil risk conslst of cash and cash equivalents, fime depesits; and accounts recelvables, The
Company maintaing its cash and cash equivalanis, ime deposits, with banks having good raputation, good past track record, and who meat the mini freshold raqui

undar tho iy risk t process, and their credit i on o perlodic basis. A b ivablas of tha Company are typlcally unsecured.
Management reviews the creditworthiness of custamars based on thelr financial position, past experience and alhiar factors. The Company perform angoing credit gvalualions of
{hair customers’ financial copdition and monitor the credi ess of thair 10 which they grant credit terms in the normal coursa of business.

At 31st Mareh, 2023, the company did not consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk which had not been adequately provided for. The carrying amount of the
financial assats recordad in the financial statements, grossed up for any allowances fiae losses, represents the maximum exposure lo credit risk.

Assels undor crodi sk
As at As at
Fatindiars HotaNo: 31.03.2023 31.02,2022
Non Current:
Financial assats -
i. Investmants 2,02 6,910.34 4,150.92
il. Other financial assels 2.03 2271 45.97
Current:
Financial assets -
i. Trade Receivables 207 815.16 973.34
ii. Cash and cash equivalenis 2.08A 167.44 276.53
ili. Bank Balances other Ihan (i) above 2.08B 202.34 122.08
iv. Loans 2.09 102.00 107.50
v. Other financial assets 210 17.97 379.14

Trade receivables

Trada recalvables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers located in India. and outside India. Credit risk has always been managed by the
Campany Urough credit approvais, establishing cradil limits and continuously menitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Campany granls credit terms in the
normal caurse of business. The Company is 1 fo a cone tion of cusiomer risk with respect to its trade receivable balances.

Al ihe reporting date, trade receivable balance from related parly is 86.05% (66.82% In financial year 2021-22) of lotal receivables. The receivables from relaled party is subjecl lo
minimal credit risk.

In accordance with Ind AS 108, Financial Instruments, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The provision for expected credit loss
takes into account available external and internal credit risk factors and Company’s historical experience for customers,

The allowance for life time expected credit loss on customer balances for the year ended 31st March,2023 and as at 31st March,2022 is assessed as Ras.Nil- (Rs.Nil’-).

Particulars Asiat Asat
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Balance al the beginning N -
Impairment loss recognised N -
Impairment less revarsed = -
Balance at tho end = c

(C) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk s the risk thal lhe Company will encounter due o difficulty in raising funds to meat commitmants associated with financial instruments that are settled by delivering
eash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result from an inabilily to sell a financlal assel quickly al closa to ils fair value, The company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reservaes and banking facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash fiows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assels and liabiltes for the
company.

The campany has sound financial strenglh represanted by iis aggregate current assels as against sggregata currant abillies and its strong squity base and working capital dobt.
Tha Company's current aasels aggregate to Rs, 2,503.95 Millons (Rs. 3,074.15 Millons) ing | tory, trada re blas, cash and cash equivalenis and bank balancas
against aggregate current ablily of Rs. 934,82 Millions (Rs.1.448.40 Milians) and non current liabilities amounting to Rs. 1,025.47 Milions (Rs.518.48 Milions) on the reparting
data. Whila the Company’s latal equity stands at Rs, 8,600.86 Milions (Rs.6,427.07 Milions), Tha Company has sstablished an oppropriate liquidity risk managament framewark.
for it's short term, medium term and long term funding requirement.

s al year-end, the Company's financial liabilitizs have contractual matutities as summarisad below:

Particulars Less than 1 year 1to 5 years Mn:;:::n ) Total

As at 31st March, 2023
Non current:

i. Lease Liabilities - 0.08 0.26 0.34
il. Other financial liabilities - - - -
Current:

i. Lease Liabilities 0.02 - - 0.02

i, Trade Payables 779.78 - - 779.78

iii. Other financial liabililies 96.18 - - 96.18
As at 31st March, 2022
Non current:

i. Lease Liabilities - 0.10 0.23 0.32
ii. Other financial liabililies - - - -
Current:

i. Leasa Liabilities 0.02 - - 0.02

il. Trade Payables 1,109.28 - - 1,109.28

lil, Other financial liabliilies 92.33 - - 92.33
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2.52 Capital management

The capital struciure of the company consists of debl, cash and cash equi and equity to equity shareholders of the company which comprises issued share
capital and reserves inthe of Changes in Equity.

The pany’s capital bjective is to achieve an optimal weighted average cost of capital while continuing to safeguard the company's ability fo meet its liquidity

requil ing its 1 in respect of capital expendilure) and repay loans as they fall due

The Company has not distributed any divi to its shar The Company monitors gearing ratio i.e. totat debt in proportion to its overall financing structure, i.e. equity and
debt. Total debt comprises of non-current borrowing which represents term loans and current borrowing from banks and olher financial institutions, Company does not have any
borrowings as on 31st March 2023. The Company manages the capital struclure and makes adjusiments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk

istics of the lying assets.
- As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Total equity [0} 8,600.86 6,427.07
Total debt m - -
Overall financing (iily = (1) + (i) 8,600.86 6,427.07
Gearing ratio I/ @ B -
No changes were made in the objecti policies or p for ing capital during the year ended 31st March 2023 and 31st March, 2022.

2,53 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest milions. Previous year figures, unless otherwise stated are given within brackets and have been re-grouped and recast
necassary to be in conformity with current year's layout
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